Public Document Pack
LOCAL REVIEW BODY
MONDAY, 17 JUNE 2019
A MEETING of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL
HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS, TD6 0SA on MONDAY, 17 JUNE 2019 at 10.00
am
J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,
10 June 2019

BUSINESS
1.

Apologies for Absence.

2.

Order of Business.

3.

Declarations of Interest.

4.

Consider request for review of refusal of application for part change of
use from agricultural barn to vehicle body repair and paint shop with
associated parking (retrospective) at Mid Softlaw Farm, Kelso.
18/01071/FUL. 19/00009/RREF.
Copies of the following papers attached:-

5.

(a)

Notice of Review

(Pages 3 10)

(b)

Decision Notice

(Pages 11 14)

(c)

Officer's Report

(Pages 15 20)

(d)

Papers referred to in Officer's Report

(Pages 21 48)

(e)

Consultations

(Pages 49 52)

(f)

List of Policies

(Pages 53 58)

Consider request for review of refusal of application for erection of two
dwellinghouses in paddock south of and incorporating part garden
ground of 1 Cowdenburn Cottages, West Linton. 18/01469/PPP.
19/00010/RREF.
Copies of the following papers attached:-

(a)

Notice of Review
Including:Decision Notice
Officer’s Report
Consultations

(Pages 59 136)
- page 84
- page 87
- page 93

(b)

Papers referred to in Officer's report, not included
in 5(a) above

(Pages 137 140)

(c)

List of Policies

(Pages 141 150)

6.

Any Other Items Previously Circulated

7.

Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent

NOTES
1.
Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’
discussions.
2.

Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors T. Miers (Chairman), S. Aitchison, A. Anderson,
J. A. Fullarton, S. Hamilton, H. Laing, S. Mountford, C. Ramage and E. Small.
Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Walling 01835 826504
email fwalling@scotborders.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4a

Page 3

Page 4

Page 5

Page 6

Page 7

Page 8

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4b

Mr Keith Redpath
per R G Licence Architect
Hillend
Ednam
Kelso
Scottish Borders



Euan Calvert
01835 826513

Our Ref:

18/01071/FUL

Please ask for:

Your Ref:
E-Mail:
Date:

ecalvert@scotborders.gov.uk
9th January 2019

Dear Sir/Madam
PLANNING APPLICATION AT Agricultural Barn Mid Softlaw Farm Kelso Scottish Borders
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:
Part change of use from agricultural barn to vehicle body
repair and paint shop with associated parking (retrospective)
APPLICANT:

Mr Keith Redpath

Please find attached the formal notice of refusal for the above application.
Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at
https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/.
Your right of appeal is set out within the decision notice.
Yours faithfully
John Hayward
Planning & Development Standards Manager

Page 11

Regulatory Services
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended)
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013
Application for Planning Permission
To :

Reference : 18/01071/FUL

Mr Keith Redpath per R G Licence Architect Hillend Ednam Kelso Scottish Borders TD5 7QE

With reference to your application validated on 15th August 2018 for planning permission under the Town
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :-

Proposal : Part change of use from agricultural barn to vehicle body repair and paint shop with
associated parking (retrospective)

At : Agricultural Barn Mid Softlaw Farm Kelso Scottish Borders

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.
Dated 9th January 2019
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE
TD6 0SA
John Hayward
Planning & Development Standards Manager

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 12

Regulatory Services
APPLICATION REFERENCE : 18/01071/FUL
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:
Plan Ref

Plan Type

Plan Status

11
21
31
41
51
61
71

Location Plan
Existing Layout
Existing Elevations
Planning Layout
Sections
Elevations
Sections

Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL
1

The use of the agricultural building as a motor vehicle workshop does not comply with policy ED7 of
the Local Development Plan 2016 as the use does not require this particular rural location and is not
appropriate to the rural character of the area. Such a use would be more reasonably
accommodated within the Development Boundary of a settlement rather than in this particular rural
location. Increased frequency and intensification of the use of this building for Class 5: Industry
would be harmful to the amenity and character of the surrounding area and to residential amenities.
Further, the applicant has not demonstrated any overriding economic and/or operational need for
this particular countryside location.

2

The proposal does not comply with policies PMD1 and IS7 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in
that it would be more reasonably accommodated within the Development Boundary of a settlement
to encourage uptake of sustainable transport methods. The proposal would lead to the overdependence of the private car. Car parking requirements or means of sustainable transport for this
proposal have not been demonstrated.

3

The proposal does not comply with policies PMD1 and PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016
in that the long term adaptability of the building has not been demonstrated. No proposals have
been made for provision of toilet facilities, staff welfare rooms or office space, waste water treatment
or water sources to comply with sustainability and quality standards.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT
It should be noted that:
The Environmental Health Officer notes requirements:
Plant and operations in the bodyshop have the potential to affect nearby amenity. Vehicle paint
spraying can impact local air quality and may require a permit from SEPA. Vehicle repair operations
can be noisy and further information is required prior to determination including;
o

A list of all noisy equipment

o

The noise expected from the equipment as per manufacturers specifications

o

Expected use of equipment, everyday/occasionally, etc.

o

Location of noisy equipment when site is operational (inside/outside)

o

Hours and days of operation

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 13

Regulatory Services
o

The expected number of large vehicle movements every day to and from the development

o

The location of the nearest properties to the site (including any owned by the applicant)

o

How noise from the site will be managed

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) within three months from the date of
this notice. The notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters,
Newtown St Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA.
If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 14

Agenda Item 4c

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)
REF :

18/01071/FUL

APPLICANT :

Mr Keith Redpath

AGENT :

R G Licence Architect

DEVELOPMENT :
Part change of use from agricultural barn to vehicle body repair and paint
shop with associated parking (retrospective)
LOCATION:

TYPE :

Agricultural Barn Mid Softlaw Farm
Kelso
Scottish Borders

FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:
______________________________________________________________________________________
DRAWING NUMBERS:
Plan Ref

Plan Type

11
21
31
41
51
61
71

Location Plan
Existing Layout
Existing Elevations
Planning Layout
Sections
Elevations
Sections

Plan Status
Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:
Two neighbours were notified and adverts placed in
tellmescotland.gov.uk. There have been no representations.

the

Southern

Reporter

and

on

Consultations as follows:
Roads Planning: Object. The proposal does not comply with policies PMD1 of the Local Development
Plan 2016 in that it would be more reasonably accommodated within the Development Boundary of a
settlement to encourage uptake of sustainable transport methods. The proposal would lead to the
over-dependence on the private car.
Economic development: Concerns unless it is further demonstrated to comply with ED2. The proposal
is sited on an agriculture farm. If the proposal is to formalise business (class 4,5 and 6) use there are
concerns about principle and compliance with building regs. for such use in terms of PMD1 and 2.
Items identified include no employee facilities (toilets, insulation, no windows, no evidence of heating
indicated, Creation of new business premises are to an appropriate and expected to be modern
standard.
Environmental Health; Plant and operations in the bodyshop have the potential to affect nearby
amenity. Vehicle paint spraying can impact local air quality and may require a permit from SEPA.

Page 15

Vehicle repair operations can be noisy and further information is required prior to determination
including;
o
A list of all noisy equipment
o
The noise expected from the equipment as per manufacturers specifications
o
Expected use of equipment, everyday/occasionally, etc.
o
Location of noisy equipment when site is operational (inside/outside)
o
Hours and days of operation
o
The expected number of large vehicle movements every day to and from the development
o
The location of the nearest properties to the site (including any owned by the applicant)
o
How noise from the site will be managed

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:
Local Development Plan 2016:
Policy PMD1: Sustainability
Policy PMD2: Quality Standards
Policy ED7: Business, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside
Policy HD3: Residential Amenity
Policy EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows
Policy EP16: Air Quality
Policy IS7: Parking Provision and Standards
Policy IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage

Recommendation by - Euan Calvert (Assistant Planning Officer) on 4th October 2018
This report of handling considers an identical application for full planning permission to partially change the
use of this agricultural barn to a vehicle body repair and paint shop with associated parking. The application
is retrospective.
Site description
Mid Softlaw Farm is situated to the south of Kelso accessed by a minor public road. It comprises of a large
farmhouse and a number of agricultural buildings.
It is a rural site adjacent to a minor road, on a rolling hilltop, 2.5km from Kelso. The minor road links the
B6436 (Kelso to Morebattle) and the B6352 (Kelso to Yetholm). Midsoftlaw is a working farm steading
midway between the B class roads comprising a farmhouse, three contemporary detached dwellinghouses,
interspersed by a terrace of five traditional farm cottages (1.5 storey).
Policy
There has been no change in Policy since decision of refusal was issued in December 2017, 17/01411/FUL.
There is no supporting statement or Design and Access Statement.
09/01228/FUL Erection of agricultural building (amendment to previous consent 09/00741/FUL). Approved
26.10.09.
Local Development Plan Policy ED7 (Business, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside)
requires that a development that is to be used for other business or employment generating uses should
only be supported where the Council is satisfied that there is an economic and/or operational need for the
particular countryside location and that the development cannot reasonably be accommodated within the
Development Boundary of a settlement.
Proposal
This building was functioning as a vehicle repair workshop on the day of my site visit, 24 August 2018. A
shipping container fronts the western gable. This is an application to formalise this business. The 3 western
bays of this steel portal framed shed would be partitioned from the remaining 4-bays to form a workshop
with spray booth and associated parking. A red line boundary encloses curtilage on land to the west and
south of the shed, which is laid to a hardcore surface, and would be Parking. There are no proposals for

Page 16

boundary treatments and the building is within 10m of the adopted road. The only discernible proposed
changes to the exterior would be provision of a pedestrian fire exit on the south elevation and a 450mm
extract fan hole in the western gable wall. Otherwise the building would remain appearing with 2.4m high
block walls and asbestos cement corrugated upperwalls/ corrugated roof.
Assessment
Principle
In appearance and function, this proposed partial reuse of an agricultural steel portal framed shed appears
ideally suited to the requirements of a motor vehicle workshop, spray booth and associated parking. There
is abundant space to manoeuvre and to park vehicles in the surrounding area and a large open span shed is
ideally suited for repairs. The shed itself would be partitioned to give working area of 14m x 11.6m, with a
spray booth partition 4m x 7m.
Sustainability and quality standards
The Economic Development Officer however highlights significant issues with quality standards, as the shed
would not comply with Regulations for normal business use in Class 4, 5 or 6. For example, there is no
proposal for provision of toilet facilities, staff welfare rooms or office space. The building is not insulated nor
is it proposed to have windows. There is no mention as to waste water treatment or water sources. On this
basis alone, the proposal does not comply with sustainability and quality standards requirements of Policy
PMD1 and PMD2 in that the long term adaptability has not been demonstrated.
Economic Development further add that a vehicle workshop should be sited within a development boundary,
and ideally on a land allocation specifically safeguarded for business and industrial use, Policy ED1. Policy
ED2 presumes refusal on non-allocated land (within Development boundaries) unless certain criteria are
fulfilled and demonstrated. In the countryside, this proposal would only be considered under the criteria of
Policy ED7:
Economic/ operational requirement
Policy ED7 requires that the Council is satisfied that there is an economic and/or operational need for the
proposal to be located in the particular countryside location identified, and that the business could not more
reasonably be accommodated within the Development Boundary.
A workshop for general motor vehicle repairs has no inherent requirement to be sited and operated in the
countryside. Such premises would ordinarily be expected to be more reasonably accommodated within the
Development Boundary, where a central and easily accessible location might be expected to facilitate their
operation, avoiding any unnecessary routing of customers into the countryside to access a remote rural site.
Amenity and character
Policy ED7 requires assessment of additional criteria which consider potential impacts of the specific
proposal. This includes impacts upon the amenity and character of the surrounding area. I anticipate
discernible changes to character and amenity through potential for increased parking of cars, increased
hours of operation and increased noise arising from this proposed change of use.
While current agriculture use presents its own amenity issues, this use is largely seasonal and this use is an
accepted norm (by neighbours) for this rural area. The character and appearance of these buildings is
synonymise of modern agriculture however potential changes to the frequency and intensity of use proposed
by this application would be harmful to the rural character of the surrounding area, which is not in
compliance with ED7. For example, there is no projection given as to the increase in traffic movements. No
proposals are given for signage, which presumably would be required to direct new clientele to this rural site.
The Environment Health Officer requires further studies demonstrating potential noise impacts of the
proposal and requires details of proposed hours of operation of the motor vehicle workshop. There remains
potential for nuisance and, as a consequence, significantly adverse impact on neighbouring residents'
amenity.
Given the proximity of the nearest residential neighbour (20m), and further requirements by our
Environmental Health Officer, I find that the applicant does not adequately demonstrate compliance with
policies PMD1 or HD3, which seek to protect residential amenity and protect public health and safety.
Access

Page 17

The Roads Planning Officer objects to the proposal on the basis that location and siting would not promote
sustainable transport. Again, the case is made that a vehicle repair/ MOT facility should be within a
Development Boundary. Good pedestrian links and public transport should be available for drop off and
return of customer vehicles and I agree to this. This proposal would not align with the aims of Policy PMD1
and IS7, which encourage use of sustainable transport means over the dependence on the private car. Car
parking requirements or means of sustainable transport for this proposal have not been demonstrated.
Precedence
My overriding concern is that approval of this proposal, which appears to be largely operational, would be in
itself tantamount to an acceptance of the principle that a general industrial use, critically one without any
substantiated need to operate from this particular countryside location, could be sited and operated in this
countryside site.
There can be no meaningful distinction made between this Class 5 use and any alternative (or successor)
Class 5 or other business operation. I would be concerned that, in this context, any condition(s) imposed to
restrict the industrial use and users of the premises in the long-term, would be unreasonable and
unnecessary. Any approval in this circumstance risks setting a dangerous precedent at this locality given the
size of the associated sheds and site.
There has been no supporting case offered and I find no material considerations that would outweigh the
need to determine the application in strict accordance with planning policy ED7. The proposal is
demonstrated to recourse to character and residential amenity, policies PMD2 and HD3. The site does not
lend itself to sustainable transport modes. The long term adaptability of the building has not been
demonstrated, policies PMD1 and PMD2, concerning sustainability and quality standards.

REASON FOR DECISION :
The proposal does not comply with Local Development Plan 2016 policies PMD1, PMD2, ED7, HD3 or IS7
in that the proposal would more reasonably be accommodated within the Development Boundary of a
settlement rather than in this particular rural location. Further, the Applicant has not demonstrated any
overriding economic and/or operational need for this particular countryside location and the use is harmful to
the amenity of the area and residential amenities.

Recommendation: Refused with informatives
1

The use of the agricultural building as a motor vehicle workshop does not comply with policy ED7 of
the Local Development Plan 2016 as the use does not require this particular rural location and is not
appropriate to the rural character of the area. Such a use would be more reasonably
accommodated within the Development Boundary of a settlement rather than in this particular rural
location. Increased frequency and intensification of the use of this building for Class 5: Industry
would be harmful to the amenity and character of the surrounding area and to residential amenities.
Further, the applicant has not demonstrated any overriding economic and/or operational need for
this particular countryside location.

2

The proposal does not comply with policies PMD1 and IS7 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in
that it would be more reasonably accommodated within the Development Boundary of a settlement
to encourage uptake of sustainable transport methods. The proposal would lead to the overdependence of the private car. Car parking requirements or means of sustainable transport for this
proposal have not been demonstrated.

3

The proposal does not comply with policies PMD1 and PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016
in that the long term adaptability of the building has not been demonstrated. No proposals have
been made for provision of toilet facilities, staff welfare rooms or office space, waste water treatment
or water sources to comply with sustainability and quality standards.

Page 18

Informatives
It should be noted that:

1

The Environmental Health Officer notes requirements;
Plant and operations in the bodyshop have the potential to affect nearby amenity. Vehicle paint
spraying can impact local air quality and may require a permit from SEPA.
Vehicle repair
operations can be noisy and further information is required prior to determination including;
o
A list of all noisy equipment
o
The noise expected from the equipment as per manufacturers specifications
o
Expected use of equipment, everyday/occasionally, etc.
o
Location of noisy equipment when site is operational (inside/outside)
o
Hours and days of operation
o
The expected number of large vehicle movements every day to and from the development
o
o

The location of the nearest properties to the site (including any owned by the applicant)
How noise from the site will be managed

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4d

Newtown St Boswells Melrose TD6 0SA Tel: 01835 825251 Fax: 01835 825071 Email: ITSystemAdmin@scotborders.gov.uk
Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE

100131553-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Type of Application
What is this application for? Please select one of the following: *






Application for planning permission (including changes of use and surface mineral working).
Application for planning permission in principle.
Further application, (including renewal of planning permission, modification, variation or removal of a planning condition etc)
Application for Approval of Matters specified in conditions.

Description of Proposal
Please describe the proposal including any change of use: * (Max 500 characters)
CHANGE OF USE FROM AGRICULTURAL BARN TO AGRICULTURAL AND VEHICLE BODY REPAIR AND PAINT SHOP

Is this a temporary permission? *

 Yes  No

If a change of use is to be included in the proposal has it already taken place?

 Yes  No

(Answer ‘No’ if there is no change of use.) *
Has the work already been started and/or completed? *

 No  Yes – Started  Yes - Completed
Please state date of completion, or if not completed, the start date (dd/mm/yyyy): *

01/09/2017

Please explain why work has taken place in advance of making this application: * (Max 500 characters)
APPLICANT WAS UNAWARE THAT AN APPLICATION WAS REQUIRED

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting

 Applicant Agent

on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)

Page 21

Page 1 of 8

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details
Company/Organisation:

R G LICENCE ARCHITECT

Ref. Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
RAY

First Name: *

Building Name:

LICENCE

Last Name: *
Telephone Number: *

HILLEND

Building Number:
Address 1
(Street): *

01573225070

Extension Number:

Address 2:

Mobile Number:

Town/City: *

Fax Number:

Country: *
Postcode: *

CLIFTONHILL

KELSO
UK
TD5 7QE

raygarch@icloud.com

Email Address: *

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *



Individual



Organisation/Corporate entity

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details
Title:

Mr

Other Title:
First Name: *
Last Name: *
Company/Organisation
Telephone Number: *

Building Name:
KEITH
REDPATH
REDPATH FARMS
01573 225670

Extension Number:
Mobile Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Building Number:
Address 1
(Street): *

MID SOFTLAW FARM

Address 2:
Town/City: *
Country: *

07891690639

MID SOFTLAW FARM BARN

Postcode: *

KELSO
UK
TD5 8DZ

Fax Number:
Email Address: *

raygarch@icloud.com

Page 2 of 8

Page 22

Site Address Details
Scottish Borders Council

Planning Authority:

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):
Address 1:
Address 2:
Address 3:
Address 4:
Address 5:
Town/City/Settlement:
Post Code:
Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing

630869

Easting

374163

Pre-Application Discussion
Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? *

 Yes  No

Site Area
Please state the site area:
Please state the measurement type used:

0.07

 Hectares (ha)  Square Metres (sq.m)

Existing Use
Please describe the current or most recent use: * (Max 500 characters)
FARM BARN

Access and Parking
Are you proposing a new altered vehicle access to or from a public road? *

 Yes  No

If Yes please describe and show on your drawings the position of any existing. Altered or new access points, highlighting the changes
you propose to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.
Page 3 of 8

Page 23

Are you proposing any change to public paths, public rights of way or affecting any public right of access? *

 Yes  No

If Yes please show on your drawings the position of any affected areas highlighting the changes you propose to make, including
arrangements for continuing or alternative public access.

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) currently exist on the application
Site?

12

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) do you propose on the site (i.e. the
Total of existing and any new spaces or a reduced number of spaces)? *

12

Please show on your drawings the position of existing and proposed parking spaces and identify if these are for the use of particular
types of vehicles (e.g. parking for disabled people, coaches, HGV vehicles, cycles spaces).

Water Supply and Drainage Arrangements
Will your proposal require new or altered water supply or drainage arrangements? *

Do your proposals make provision for sustainable drainage of surface water?? *
(e.g. SUDS arrangements) *

 Yes  No
 Yes  No

Note:Please include details of SUDS arrangements on your plans
Selecting ‘No’ to the above question means that you could be in breach of Environmental legislation.

Are you proposing to connect to the public water supply network? *





Yes
No, using a private water supply
No connection required

If No, using a private water supply, please show on plans the supply and all works needed to provide it (on or off site).

Assessment of Flood Risk
 Yes  No  Don’t Know

Is the site within an area of known risk of flooding? *

If the site is within an area of known risk of flooding you may need to submit a Flood Risk Assessment before your application can be
determined. You may wish to contact your Planning Authority or SEPA for advice on what information may be required.
Do you think your proposal may increase the flood risk elsewhere? *

 Yes  No  Don’t Know

Trees
 Yes  No

Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? *

If Yes, please mark on your drawings any trees, known protected trees and their canopy spread close to the proposal site and indicate if
any are to be cut back or felled.

Waste Storage and Collection
Do the plans incorporate areas to store and aid the collection of waste (including recycling)? *

 Yes  No

Page 4 of 8

Page 24

If Yes or No, please provide further details: * (Max 500 characters)
STORAGE BIN AREA SHOWN ON FLOOR PLAN

Residential Units Including Conversion
 Yes  No

Does your proposal include new or additional houses and/or flats? *

All Types of Non Housing Development – Proposed New Floorspace
 Yes  No

Does your proposal alter or create non-residential floorspace? *

All Types of Non Housing Development – Proposed New Floorspace
Details
For planning permission in principle applications, if you are unaware of the exact proposed floorspace dimensions please provide an
estimate where necessary and provide a fuller explanation in the ‘Don’t Know’ text box below.
Please state the use type and proposed floorspace (or number of rooms if you are proposing a hotel or residential institution): *
Class 4 Business (Office/Light Industry)
Gross (proposed) floorspace (In square meters, sq.m) or number of new (additional)
Rooms (If class 7, 8 or 8a): *

168

If Class 1, please give details of internal floorspace:
Net trading spaces:

Non-trading space:

Total:
If Class ‘Not in a use class’ or ‘Don’t know’ is selected, please give more details: (Max 500 characters)

Schedule 3 Development
Does the proposal involve a form of development listed in Schedule 3 of the Town and Country
Planning (Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013 *

 Yes  No  Don’t Know

If yes, your proposal will additionally have to be advertised in a newspaper circulating in the area of the development. Your planning
authority will do this on your behalf but will charge you a fee. Please check the planning authority’s website for advice on the additional
fee and add this to your planning fee.
If you are unsure whether your proposal involves a form of development listed in Schedule 3, please check the Help Text and Guidance
notes before contacting your planning authority.

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest
Is the applicant, or the applicant’s spouse/partner, either a member of staff within the planning service or an
elected member of the planning authority? *

 Yes  No

Page 5 of 8

Page 25

Certificates and Notices
CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 – TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATION 2013
One Certificate must be completed and submitted along with the application form. This is most usually Certificate A, Form 1,
Certificate B, Certificate C or Certificate E.

 Yes  No

Are you/the applicant the sole owner of ALL the land? *

 Yes  No
 Yes  No

Is any of the land part of an agricultural holding? *
Do you have any agricultural tenants? *

Certificate Required
The following Land Ownership Certificate is required to complete this section of the proposal:
Certificate E

Land Ownership Certificate
Certificate and Notice under Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2013
Certificate E
I hereby certify that –
(1) – No person other than myself/the applicant was the owner of any part of the land to which the application relates at the beginning of
the period 21 days ending with the date of the application.
(2) - The land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding and there are no agricultural tenants
Or
(1) – No person other than myself/the applicant was the owner of any part of the land to which the application relates at the beginning of
the period 21 days ending with the date of the application.
(2) - The land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding and there are agricultural tenants.

Name:
Address:

Date of Service of Notice: *

Page 6 of 8

Page 26

(4) – I have/The applicant has taken reasonable steps, as listed below, to ascertain the names and addresses of the other owners or
agricultural tenants and *have/has been unable to do so –

Signed:

RAY LICENCE

On behalf of:

REDPATH FARMS

Date:

14/08/2018

 Please tick here to certify this Certificate. *
Checklist – Application for Planning Permission
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013
Please take a few moments to complete the following checklist in order to ensure that you have provided all the necessary information
in support of your application. Failure to submit sufficient information with your application may result in your application being deemed
invalid. The planning authority will not start processing your application until it is valid.
a) If this is a further application where there is a variation of conditions attached to a previous consent, have you provided a statement to
that effect? *

 Yes  No  Not applicable to this application
b) If this is an application for planning permission or planning permission in principal where there is a crown interest in the land, have
you provided a statement to that effect? *

 Yes  No  Not applicable to this application
c) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle or a further application and the application is for
development belonging to the categories of national or major development (other than one under Section 42 of the planning Act), have
you provided a Pre-Application Consultation Report? *

 Yes  No  Not applicable to this application
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013
d) If this is an application for planning permission and the application relates to development belonging to the categories of national or
major developments and you do not benefit from exemption under Regulation 13 of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013, have you provided a Design and Access Statement? *

 Yes  No  Not applicable to this application
e) If this is an application for planning permission and relates to development belonging to the category of local developments (subject
to regulation 13. (2) and (3) of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013) have you provided a Design
Statement? *

 Yes  No  Not applicable to this application
f) If your application relates to installation of an antenna to be employed in an electronic communication network, have you provided an
ICNIRP Declaration? *

 Yes  No  Not applicable to this application

Page 7 of 8

Page 27

g) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle, an application for approval of matters specified in
conditions or an application for mineral development, have you provided any other plans or drawings as necessary:











Site Layout Plan or Block plan.
Elevations.
Floor plans.
Cross sections.
Roof plan.
Master Plan/Framework Plan.
Landscape plan.
Photographs and/or photomontages.
Other.

If Other, please specify: * (Max 500 characters)

Provide copies of the following documents if applicable:
A copy of an Environmental Statement. *
A Design Statement or Design and Access Statement. *
A Flood Risk Assessment. *
A Drainage Impact Assessment (including proposals for Sustainable Drainage Systems). *
Drainage/SUDS layout. *
A Transport Assessment or Travel Plan
Contaminated Land Assessment. *
Habitat Survey. *
A Processing Agreement. *

 Yes
 Yes
 Yes
 Yes
 Yes
 Yes
 Yes
 Yes
 Yes

 N/A
 N/A
 N/A
 N/A
 N/A
 N/A
 N/A
 N/A
 N/A

Other Statements (please specify). (Max 500 characters)

Declare – For Application to Planning Authority
I, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application to the planning authority as described in this form. The accompanying
Plans/drawings and additional information are provided as a part of this application.
Declaration Name:

Mr RAY LICENCE

Declaration Date:

14/08/2018

Page 8 of 8

Page 28

Page 29

Page 30

Page 31

Page 32

Page 33

Page 34

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 37

Page 38

Page 39

Page 40

Page 41

Page 42

Page 43

Page 44

Page 45

Page 46

Page 47

Page 48

Agenda Item 4e

PLANNING CONSULTATION
To:

Economic Development Section

From:

Development Management

Contact:

Euan Calvert

Date: 17th August 2018

 01835 826513

Ref: 18/01071/FUL

PLANNING CONSULTATION
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have
your reply not later than 7th September 2018, If further time will be required for a reply please let
me know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 7th September 2018, it
will be assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application.
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply
into Idox.
Name of Applicant: Mr Keith Redpath
Agent:

R G Licence Architect

Nature of Proposal: Part change of use from agricultural barn to vehicle body repair and paint
shop with associated parking (retrospective)
Site:
Agricultural Barn Mid Softlaw Farm Kelso Scottish Borders
_________________________________________________________________________
OBSERVATIONS OF: Economic Development Section

CONSULTATION REPLY
Generally this appears a re-submission of a previously refused application 17/01411/FUL.
We cannot see any modifications from the previous application; therefore our previous comments
below still apply.

Generally we are supportive of the provision of new business premises to support
business use. The proposed facilities appear, however, to be designed for use as stores
since they have no employee facilities shown such as toilets, do not appear to be
insulated, have no windows, with no evidence of heating indicated, and therefore do not
appear to be planned for business use. We would prefer to support the creation of new
business premises which are to an appropriate and expected modern standard.
The application site is situated within, what appears to be, an existing agricultural farm
operation. As the proposal is for a business use, rather than an agricultural operation,
then we would have concerns about the premises being allowed to be used for general
Class 4, 5, or 6, uses, unless this has already been established. If the premises were
constructed for use as a farm shed, so in their current form may not comply with Building
Regulations for normal business use. We would have reservations about a general Class
4-6 use being established unless it can be demonstrated to comply with Policy ED2 and
would expect it to comply with policies PMD1 & PMD2.

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 49

Scottish Borders Council
Regulatory Services – Consultation reply
Planning Ref

18/01071/FUL

Uniform Ref

18/02516/PLANCO

Proposal

Planning Consultation Part change of use from agricultural
barn to vehicle body repair and paint shop with associated
parking (retrospective)
Agricultural Barn Mid Softlaw Farm
Kelso

Address

Scottish Borders

Date

18th September 2018

Amenity and Pollution Officer

Fraser Smith

Contaminated Land Officer

No Comment

Amenity and Pollution
Assessment of Application
Air quality
Noise
Nuisance
This retrospective application is for the conversion of an agricultural barn to a vehicle body repair
and paint shop. Plant and operations in the bodyshop have the potential to affect nearby amenity.
Vehicle paint spraying can impact local air quality and may require a permit from SEPA. Vehicle
repair operations can be noisy. Further information is required to ascertain whether a noise impact
assessment is necessary.
The applicant/agent should provide the following information:









A list of all noisy equipment
The noise expected from the equipment as per manufacturers specifications
Expected use of equipment, everyday/occasionally, etc.
Location of noisy equipment when site is operational (inside/outside)
Hours and days of operation
The expected number of large vehicle movements every day to and from the development
The location of the nearest properties to the site (including any owned by the applicant)
How noise from the site will be managed

Recommendation
Delete as appropriate – Agree with application in principle, subject to conditions /Further
Information Required Before Application is Determined / Information to be Provided Before Work
Commences (see conditions) / No Comment / Object

Page 50

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO
PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION
Comments provided by

Roads Planning Service

Officer Name and Post:

Keith Patterson
Roads Planning Officer
4th October 2018

Date of reply
Planning Application
Reference
Proposed Development
Site Location

Contact e-mail/number:
kpatterson@scotborders.gov.uk
01835 826637

18/01071/FUL

Case Officer:
Euan Calvert
Part Change of Use From Agricultural Barn to Vehicle Body Repair and Paint Shop.
Agricultural Barn, Mid Softlaw Farm, Kelso.

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application as they
relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be made after
consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations.
Background and
Site description

This is a retrospective application. An identical application 17/01411/FUL was
previously submitted and refused.

Key Issues
(Bullet points)
Assessment

In terms of sustainable transport this application is far from ideal in that the
proposed MOT centre is located out with Kelso. Ideally a facility such as this
would be located within a settlement with good pedestrian links and public
transport available. This would allow customers to drop off their car at the garage
and get back home without having to get a lift in another vehicle. The same would
apply in reverse when picking the vehicle up from the garage.
I am therefore unable to support the application.

Recommendation
Reason for Refusal

☒ Object

☐Do not object

☐Do not object,
☐Further information
subject to conditions
required
The proposal does not comply with policies PMD1 of the Local Development Plan
2016 in that it would be more reasonably accommodated within the Development
Boundary of a settlement to encourage uptake of sustainable transport methods.
The proposal would lead to the over-dependence on the private car.

Recommended
Informatives

Signed:

Alan Scott

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

List of Policies

Agenda Item 4f

Local Review Reference: 19/00009/RREF
Planning Application Reference: 18/01071/FUL
Development Proposal: Part change of use from agricultural barn to vehicle body repair
and paint shop with associated parking (retrospective)
Location: Agricultural Barn, Mid Softlaw Farm, Kelso
Applicant: Mr Keith Redpath
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016
POLICY PMD1: SUSTAINABILITY
In determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, the Council will have
regard to the following sustainability principles which underpin all the Plan’s policies and
which developers will be expected to incorporate into their developments:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)
l)

the long term sustainable use and management of land
the preservation of air and water quality
the protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, and species
the protection of built and cultural resources
the efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources
the minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its
sustainable management
the encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the
private car
the minimisation of light pollution
the protection of public health and safety
the support to community services and facilities
the provision of new jobs and support to the local economy
the involvement of the local community in the design, management and improvement
of their environment

POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS
All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its
landscape surroundings. The standards which will apply to all development are that:
Sustainability
a)
In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has
demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient
use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources
such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance. Planning
applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction
target has been met, with at least half of this target met through the use of low or
zero carbon technology,
b)
it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,
c)
it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall
provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and
maintenance,
d)
it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,
e)
it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and,
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

Page 53

List of Policies
f)

g)

it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the
wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an
early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for
long term landscape/open space maintenance,
it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design
h)
It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the
context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need
not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,
i)
it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and,
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,
j)
it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the
existing building,
k)
it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,
l)
it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
m)
it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the
development that will help integration with its surroundings,
n)
it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.
Accessibility
o)
Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street
patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,
p)
it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
q)
it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the
site access,
r)
it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport
connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support
more sustainable travel patterns,
s)
it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used
for waste collection purposes.
Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity
t)
It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be
appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,
u)
it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.
Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and
landscape plans as appropriate.
POLICY ED2: EMPLOYMENT USES OUTWITH BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL
Within the defined Development Boundary there will be a general presumption against
industrial or business uses outwith business and industrial land, mixed use or redevelopment

Page 54

List of Policies
sites (Policies ED1 and PMD3). Any proposal for such a use in such a location will be
required to:
a)
b)
c)

justify the need for that location, and
demonstrate significant economic and/or employment benefit, and
demonstrate that it can co-exist satisfactorily with adjoining uses

POLICY ED7: BUSINESS, TOURISM AND LEISURE IN THE COUNTRYSIDE
BUSINESS, TOURISM AND LEISURE
Proposals for business, tourism or leisure development in the countryside will be approved
and rural diversification initiatives will be encouraged provided that:
a)
the development is to be used directly for agricultural, horticultural or forestry
operations, or for uses which by their nature are appropriate to the rural character of the
area; or
b)
the development is to be used directly for leisure, recreation or tourism appropriate to
a countryside location and, where relevant, it is in accordance with the Scottish Borders
Tourism Strategy and Action Plan;
c)
the development is to be used for other business or employment generating uses,
provided that the Council is satisfied that there is an economic and/or operational need for
the particular countryside location, and that it cannot be reasonably be accommodated within
the Development Boundary of a settlement.
In addition the following criteria will also be considered:
a)
the development must respect the amenity and character of the surrounding area,
b)
the development must have no significant adverse impact on nearby uses,
particularly housing,
c)
where a new building is proposed, the developer will be required to provide evidence
that no appropriate existing building or brownfield site is available, and where conversion of
an existing building of architectural merit is proposed, evidence that the building is capable
of conversion without substantial demolition and rebuilding,
d)
the impact of the expansion or intensification of uses, where the use and scale of
development are appropriate to the rural character of the area,
e)
the development meets all other siting, and design criteria in accordance with Policy
PMD2, and
f)
the development must take account of accessibility considerations in accordance
with Policy IS4.
Where a proposal comes forward for the creation of a new business including that of a
tourism proposal, a business case that supports the proposal will be required to be
submitted as part of the application process.
POLICY HD3 : PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY
Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:
a)
b)
(i)

the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that
would be lost; and
the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,

Page 55

List of Policies
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties
particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’
development,
the generation of traffic or noise,
the level of visual impact.

POLICY EP13: TREES, WOODLANDS AND HEDGEROWS
The Council will refuse development that would cause the loss of or serious damage to the
woodland resource unless the public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the loss of
landscape, ecological, recreational, historical, or shelter value.
Any development that may impact on the woodland resource should:
a)
aim to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity value of the woodland resource,
including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and
b)
where there is an unavoidable loss of the woodland resource, ensure appropriate
replacement planting, where possible, within the area of the Scottish Borders; and
c)
adhere to any planning agreement sought to enhance the woodland resource.
POLICY EP16: AIR QUALITY
Development proposals that, individually or cumulatively, could adversely affect the quality of
air in a locality to a level that could potentially harm human health and wellbeing or the
integrity of the natural environment, must be accompanied by provisions that the Council is
satisfied will minimise such impacts to an acceptable degree. Where it is considered
appropriate the Council may request that an Air Quality Assessment is undertaken to assist
determination of an application.
POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISION AND STANDARDS
Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with
approved standards.
Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not
compromise road safety.
In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to
promote the use of sustainable travel modes.
POLICY IS9: WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS AND SUSTAINABLE URBAN
DRAINAGE
WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new
development will be, in order of priority:
a)
direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or
failing that:
b)
negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or failing
that:

Page 56

List of Policies
c)
agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or
temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment
plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that:
d)
for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing it can
be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the
environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater.
In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the
conditions in criteria (d) above can be satisfied.
Development will be refused if:
a)
it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment
infrastructure within settlements,
b)
it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to
provide for new infrastructure.
SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE
Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites,
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the
satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required),
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required. Development will be
refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids
flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood
attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features.
OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS



SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Landscape and Development 2008
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Trees and Development 2008

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5a

Page 59

Page 60

Page 61

Page 62

Page 63

Page 64

APPEAL STATEMENT
SITE ADDRESS: PADDOCK SOUTH OF AND
INCORPORATING PART GARDEN GROUND OF 1
COWDENBURN COTTAGES WEST LINTON
SCOTTISH BORDERS
PLANNING APPEAL AGAINST THE REFUSAL OF:
ERECTION OF TWO DWELLINGHOUSES

APPLICANT: MR A ANDERSON
APRIL 2019

Page 65

CONTENTS
1. Introduction
2. Site Context and Proposal
3. Planning Policy Context
4. Grounds of Appeal
5. Conclusion

Page 66

1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

This Appeal Statement, prepared by Ferguson Planning, is submitted to Scottish Borders
Local Review Body regarding the refusal of application 18/01469/PPP for the “Erection of
two dwellinghouses at paddock south of and incorporating part garden ground of 1
Cowdenburn Cottages West Linton Scottish Borders”. The application was submitted on
22nd October and refused by Scottish Borders Council on 6th February 2019.

1.2

Two reasons for refusal were stated on the application decision notice, as follows:
1. The development would be contrary to Policy HD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016
and New Housing in the Borders Countryside Guidance 2008 in that it would not relate
sympathetically to the character of the existing building group or surrounding
landscape.
2. The development would be contrary to policy EP13 of the Local Development Plan
2016 and Trees and Development Guidance 2008 in that it would cause the loss or
serious damage to high amenity value trees which would not be outweighed by an
overriding public benefit.
The Appellant

1.3

The Appellant is Mr A. Anderson, the subject site is land adjoining/adjacent to the
applicant’s house. These grounds are presently used as a paddock and a timber field shelter
exists along the adjoining boundary with the appellant’s property.
Proposed Development

1.4

The development proposal is to create two building plots from the appellants paddock
ground adjacent to the existing building group and which would go some way in delivering
much needed housing in the West Linton area.

1.5

The application relates to what is effectively a corner section ‘infill’ site between 1
Cowdenburn Cottage and A701 public road. Existing timber post and rail define the
boundary fence with 1 Cowdenburn Cottages and partly forms the north-east boundary of
the application site. This continues to the rear boundary of the applicant’s garden and is
then undefined as it crosses and area of ground owned by the applicant to the rear of their
garden.

1.6

This then changes to a post & wire fence which adjoins the extensive garden ground of 5
Cowdenburn Cottages before reaching the former Dolphinton railway branch line. The
former railway line forms the southern boundary of the application site and is defined by a
post and wire fence.

Page 67

1.7

The north-western boundary lies alongside the A701 public road and is defined by a post
and wire fence along which there are a belt of mature trees screening the application site
from view

1.8

The proposal has been carefully thought out and drawn together by the Appellant and their
Architect. The development design of both dwellings are of modest scale and height and
have been positioned to replicate existing properties. Significant landscaping proposals are
included to assimilate the proposals into the setting and provide defined site boundaries,
as shown on the Site Plan.

1.9

The Local Review Body, having considered the detail contained within the refused Planning
Application, together with the information set out herein, will be respectfully requested to
allow the Review to enable planning permission to be granted for the proposals at
Cowdenburn.

1.10 All core documents and drawings have been resubmitted with this appeal.
1.11 The remainder of the Appeal Statement is structured as follows:


Section 2: Site Context



Section 3: The Proposal



Section 4: Planning Policy Context



Section 5: Proposal Compliance



Section 6: Grounds of Appeal



Section 7: Conclusions

Page 68

2. SITE CONTEXT
2.1

The appeal site is located on the south western edge of the existing Cowdenburn building
group. The application site lies adjacent to 1 Cowdenburn Cottage and is predominantly
garden ground and paddock. Access is off the A701 public road through an existing field gate
from the minor access road serving the existing adjacent cottages. The site location is
demonstrated in Figure 1.
Figure 1. Site location

2.2

A post and wire fence, which follows the line of the former railway, forms a boundary to the
field beyond the application site. The north western boundary is formed by a stand of
mature trees and a mature tree is located in the northern corner of the site, adjacent to the
site access. A photograph of the site is shown in Figure 2.

Page 69

Figure 2. Photograph of site with view to the north western boundary.

2.3

An indicative layout of the positioning and scale of the two dwellings is shown below in
Figure 3. One can see how the proposal endeavours to “bookend” the existing building
group.
Figure 3. Indicative layout plan

Page 70

Proposed Development
2.4

2.5

The Planning Application for the erection of two residential dwellings in principle (PPP)
included drawings and documents noted below and which are re-supplied with this Appeal.


Location Plan



Site Plan



Planning Statement

During the course of the application statutory consultees responded to the application and
included:


Roads Planning



Landscape Architect



Contaminated Land Officer

2.6

No objections subject to conditions were received from both the Roads Officer and
Contaminated Land Officer.

2.7

The Landscape Officer objected on the basis of the impact the proposal would have on the
mature tree line and mature sycamore tree. We consider the related matter can be
addressed via a suitable worded condition and will return to this matter later in this
statement.

Page 71

3. PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT
3.1

This section provides an overview of key planning polices relevant to the proposed
development. Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) sets out national planning polices and is a key
material consideration in the determination of this application. The Development Plan is
made up of the Strategic Development Plan for South East Scotland (SESPlan) and the
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016).
SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY (SPP) 2014

3.2

SPP encourages rural development that supports prosperous and sustainable communities
and businesses, whilst protecting and enhancing environmental quality. SPP provides that,
where appropriate, the construction of single houses outwith settlements should be
supported provided such are well sited and designed to fit with local landscape character,
taking account of landscape protection and other plan policies.

3.3

A key focus for SPP is the creation of well-designed, sustainable places and supporting
sustainable economic growth and regeneration. SPP also seeks to ensure that there is an
effective five year land supply in place at all times.

3.4

SPP creates a presumption in favour of development that contributes to sustainable
development. Policies and decisions will be guided by key principles, including:


supporting good design and the six qualities of successful places;



making efficient use of existing capacities of land, buildings and infrastructure;



supporting climate change mitigation and adaption;



having regard to the principles of sustainable land use;



protecting, enhancing and promoting access to cultural and natural heritage;



reducing waste, facilitating its management and promoting resource recovery;
and



avoiding over-development, protecting the amenity of new and existing
development and considering the implications of development for water, air and
soil quality

Page 72

Policy PMD 2 Quality Standards
3.5

This policy sets out a range of sustainability, placemaking and design, accessibility and open
space/ biodiversity requirements, whereby the proposal must:


Take appropriate measures to maximise the efficient use of energy and resources,
in terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply;



Make provision for sustainable drainage;



Incorporate appropriate measures for separate storage of waste and recycling;



Incorporate appropriate landscaping to help integration with the surroundings;



Create a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of context;



Be of a scale, massing and height appropriate to the surroundings;



Be finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement
the highest quality of architecture in the locality;



Be compatible with, and respect, the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses and neighbouring built form;



Be able to be satisfactorily accommodated within the site;



Provide for appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges, and to
help integration with the surroundings;



Incorporate access for those with mobility difficulties;



Not have an adverse impact on road safety in terms of the site access;



Incorporate adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used for
waste collection purposes.



Retain physical or natural features which are important to the amenity or
biodiversity of the area.

Policy HD3 protection of residential Amenity
3.6

Development must not have an adverse impact upon the residential amenity of existing or
proposed areas. The scale, form and type of development will be taken into account in terms
of its fit with an area, as will any impact in terms of loss of privacy, overlooking or loss of
sunlight. The visual impact of the proposed development will also be taken into account.

Page 73

Policy HD4 Meeting Housing Land Requirement
3.7

This Policy outlines the requirement to have an effective housing land supply and, in this
instance, there was a requirement to undertake Supplementary Guidance to try and address
a noted and agreed shortfall.

3.8

The matter of housing shortfall and in particular within the West Linton area will be returned
to in the Grounds of Appeal section to follow.
Policy PMD5 infill Development

3.9

This policy provides that development on non-allocated, infill or windfall sites will be
supported where development:


Does not conflict with the established land use of the area;



Does not detract from the character or amenity of the area;



The cumulative and individual effects of the development can be sustained by the
social and economic infrastructure;



Does not lead to over-development;



Respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in the context of its
surroundings;



Can be served by adequate access, and servicing can be achieved (including water,
drainage and schools capacity);



Does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining
properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking.

Policy HD2 Housing in the Countryside
3.10 This policy provides a range of scenarios in which housing in the countryside will be
supported including where there is an existing building group of 3 or more houses which
share a sense of place. In such situations the grouping can be added to by up to 30% or 2
units (whichever is the greater) subject to there being suitable sites.

Page 74

4. GROUNDS FOR APPEAL (GOA)

GOA 1
4.1

One reason given for refusing planning application 18/01469/PPP, was that:
The development would be contrary to Policy HD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016
and New Housing in the Borders Countryside Guidance 2008 in that it would not relate
sympathetically to the character of the existing building group or surrounding
landscape.

4.2

The proposed development adjoins an existing building group of more than three dwellings.
It intends to create or enhance the defined boundary through the implementation of tree
and hedge planting. The proposal would create a ‘book end’ to the existing building group,
preventing any further development towards the south and west of the building group and
a completion of the building group on all boundaries.

4.3

The positioning of the properties largely mirror the existing property at 5 Cowdenburn
Cottage, the most recent addition to the building group. The Officer asserts that the
proposed new house would not align with existing housing development and would be
positioned where there are no equivalent dwellings. We do not agree with such a
conclusion.

4.4

5 Cowdenburn is situated towards the north east and is a single storey modern bungalow
which was constructed at the turn of the century (references 00/00251/OUT and
01/01495/REM). The introduction of this house into the building group was substantially
different to what already exists, it sits on individual plot, with a large residential footprint
and does not follow the building line of the traditional houses but sits at approximately 45
degrees to them. The site is visible from the A701 road and has only a small wooden fence
between the property and the road as the north western boundary.

4.5

The principle of development at 5 Cowdenburn Cottages is relevant in this proposal. As the
positioning, scale and mass of the property was a new addition to the existing properties in
the building group. It has a similar concept but on the other side of the building group.

4.6

The proposal uses the outer boundary of the former railway line and intends to incorporate
structural planting and infill screen planting on the southern boundary to create a defined
edge to the building group ensuring no further development can extend beyond this
proposal. The subject site is already heavily screened by existing mature tree line cover
reducing visual impact from the main public road, as shown in Figure 4.

4.7

A detailed landscaping proposal would be provided by way of condition and ultimately will
assist the setting of the new dwellings into the landscape

Page 75

Figure 4. Existing mature tree line concealing proposed site

4.8

The Officer suggested the development. ‘’would amount to sporadic residential
development in a countryside location’’. This is not considered to be the case as the
development is proposed on a site that sits directly adjacent and shares the same access to
an existing build group. The development is not sporadic in nature. It is adjacent to an
existing building group as per the recommended guidance and uses part of an unused
paddock and part garden ground from 1 Cowdenburn Cottage. The subject site also has
existing defined post and wire fence boundaries on all other sides which will be further
strengthened.

4.9

We consider that the proposal represents a natural infill plot and one that will align itself
with neighbouring properties situated within the corner section of unused paddock and
garden ground. It will provide a natural ending to the existing building group. It is contained
by the route of the old railway line.

4.10 The proposal would be visible from the A701 road travelling north from Lamancha Village.
However, impacts will not be significant within the wider context and visibility will be
drastically reduced with the implementation of appropriate landscaping as indicated on the
submitted drawings. Traveling from the other direction towards Lamancha Village the
dwellings are completely concealed by the existing mature tree line.

Page 76

4.11 As the application is ‘in principle” (PPP) the exact scale, siting and design of the dwellings
will be proposed at the next stage of the planning process and can be controlled by way of
suitable worded planning condition.
Precedent
4.12 It appears there is a level of flexibility when building into undeveloped land, as
demonstrated by the approval of a number of planning applications within the immediate
vicinity of the site and other successful appeals to the LRB.
4.13 Whilst every planning application should be determined on its merits, it is important to have
consistency in planning decisions to provide confidence in the development management
system and previous planning decisions are therefore capable of being material
considerations. We believe flexibility in approach is correct when the principle of
development is accepted against policy and often is needed in housing delivery.
4.14 It is valid to point out the development of dwellings that have encroached into open fields
in the Lamancha area.
Application 10/00235/FUL
4.15 Application 10/00235/FUL Whim Farm for the demolition of existing farm house and
erection of two dwellings.
4.16 Whilst it is accepted here there was a previous farm house on part of this land, the size area
of each individual proposed dwellings was larger than the farm house itself. Therefore, the
erection of a second dwelling encroached onto agricultural land to the south western
boundary.
4.17 A further application 10/01540/FUL was then submitted and approved on this site for one
of the dwellings to change the use of agricultural land to the rear of the property to garden
grounds.
4.18 In this instance it was deemed acceptable to build on an open field and change its use from
agricultural use to garden grounds for residential purposes.
Application 16/00250/FUL
4.19 A more recent example is drawn from the approval of application 16/00250/FUL for the
erection of a single dwelling at Madrissa Farm.
4.20 The boundaries that defined the site in this case were acknowledged as only being a post
and wire fence on three boundaries before extending out into agricultural field. The site had
two distinct parts, one area had been used previously as part of an old farm steading and
the other was open grass to the south. The open grass was adjacent to an agricultural field.

Page 77

4.21 Therefore, the encroachment of previous applications into open fields has been deemed
acceptable in these instances. Building plots, similar to that proposed, have again been
tested at LRB numerous times and shown where there is proposed landscape containment
and where the plots are adjacent to a defined building group they were deemed to be
acceptable.
4.22 In those instances the correct level of flexibility and interpretation were used in ensuring a
rural housing within the Scottish Borders can come forward and assist in meeting housing
delivery requirements set down by SESPlan.

GOA 2
4.23 The second reason for Scottish Borders Council to refuse planning application
18/01469/PPP, was that:
The development would be contrary to policy EP13 of the Local Development Plan
2016 and Trees and Development Guidance 2008 in that it would cause the loss or
serious damage to high amenity value trees which would not be outweighed by an
overriding public benefit.
4.24 The Landscape Officer objected to the proposal on the basis of it possible having a
detrimental impact on the mature sycamore and existing trees along the north west
boundary. The issues concerned here could be met through the provision of detailed
landscape drawings as part of the discharging of an appropriately worded pre-start
condition, as agreed by the Local Authority.
4.25 As the application was in principle, it was deemed that tree protection measures are a
matter of detail to be controlled at the next stage in the planning process.
4.26 The Appellant is supportive of protecting the appropriate trees and is willing to implement
measures such as ‘no-dig’ Terram Geocell as a tree root protection system.
4.27 Using Terram Geocell for tree root protection ensures the roots beneath are protected from
vehicle loads by confining the sub-base and stabilising the ground. When the permeable
Terram Geocell is filed with a porous, no fines, free-flowing aggregate the system allows
essential passage of air and water providing essential nutrients to the roots. A visual
description of how Terram Geocell can be implemented is outlined in Figure 5.

Page 78

Figure 5. Terram Geocell visual description

4.28 Detailed drawings and input of a suitably qualified arboriculturalist, would be provided in
discharging the relevant pre-start planning condition.
4.29 In relation to the development having an impact on the mature tree line and the
requirement to improve the visibility from the access by some minor canopy raising of the
trees on the north western boundary, the Officer agreed that this could again be
conditioned as recommended by Roads in the event that the appeal is allowed.

GOA 3
4.30 The third ground of appeal relates to Policy HD4 of the LDP and ensuring we meet housing
needs within the Scottish Borders. It requires that a five year land supply is proven to be
effective at all times.
4.31 While it is appreciated that the proposal is modest in terms of the number of dwellings it is
clear that self build homes in the Scottish Borders plays a major part in trying to meet
housing land requirements.
4.32 Ferguson Planning have commented further in relation to housing land supply as part of the
LDP2 consultation. It is considered that the area in and around West Linton is under supplied
against demand and both in relation to new housing and business units.
4.33 The current LDP touches upon the related HNDA and a yearly delivery target of 492 homes
per annum. The SESplan Supplementary Guidance (SSG) target is almost twice that.
4.34 The Table below ‘Housing Land Requirement’ outlines the Scottish Borders Supplementary
Guidance (SG) and which was based on the SESplan Supplementary Guidance (SSG).

Page 79

Scottish Borders Housing Land Requirement

Housing
Requirement

2009-2025

2009-2019

9,650

2019-2024

3,280

2025

492

TOTAL

13,422

4.35 The above requirement seeks the delivery of c. 839 homes per annum and a target that is
not currently being achieved.
4.36 Our housing analysis has raised significant questions over whether there is an effective five
year land supply at present. It also denoted that when reviewing the LDP and additional SPG
housing allocations up to 3,000 homes are considered constrained. Greater flexibility is
needed to bring forward further deliverable sites and in areas where people wish to live.
Housing under rural building groups plays its part in housing delivery and a further reasoning
as to why the proposal should be supported.
4.37 In simplistic terms, when one acknowledges the annual housing requirement and then
reviews, for example, Appendix 2 - Table 9 and 10 of the adopted LDP it gives rise to
significant concern regarding an effective five year land supply.
4.38 It shows that over the five years between 2010 and 2014/15 there was an average annual
completion trend rate of some 367 dwellings per annum.
4.39 Further completion trends are outlined within the LDP2 MIR (Table 4) and Scottish Borders
Housing Audit 2018 (Table 8) for the years 2012/13 to 2016/17 showing an annual (average)
housing delivery of only 298 dwellings. This indicates a fairly significant drop in housing
delivery and again cause for concern.
4.40 It would therefore suggest that, in annual terms, housing delivery is running at c. 65% below
the required target and gives rise to significant questions as to how the current land supply
can indeed be considered “effective” now or into the future. This is further confirmed with
the fact that historic trends show that, on average, 43% of completions are from windfall
(non allocated) sites.

Page 80

4.41 This leads to two general conclusions:
•

There is considered not to be a five year effective land supply

•

There is a significant need to bring forward further sustainable and suitable
housing sites. A great deal of current delivery in the Scottish Borders is
from rural building group houses like that proposed.

4.42 The proposal seeks to assist in going toward trying to meet the five year effective housing
land supply target, help deliver housing in the West Linton area which is considered to be
under catered for and thus seeks to deliver upon the general principles of LDP Policy HD4.

Page 81

5. CONCLUSION
5.1

The submitted Appeal supported by this Statement and associated documents seeks the
Council’s decision to refuse Planning Permission to be overturned and consent be granted
for the proposal.

5.2

The attached indicative layout would see the “infill” corner section plot aligned with the
existing adjacent roadside cottages and would form the end plot creating a “bookend” to
the building group and thus the completion of the building group at Cowdenburn.

5.3

Additional landscape planting will be placed along the direction boundaries, this will confine
the dwellings and prevent further development beyond what we consider the defined
building group (inc. subject site).

5.4

Consideration of the proposed development on the character and amenity of the existing
area has been provided in this statement and concluded that the proposed development
could be assimilated into its landscape setting with ease. The proposal would not, therefore,
be viewed as an inappropriate addition to the existing Cowdenburn building group.

5.5

The associated proposal for the creation of two dwellings can be adequately screened to
the satisfaction of the LRB, with planting (as indicated on drawings) secured by way of a
suitably worded planning condition. Indeed, all of the drawings and supporting information
that would be required by the Landscape Architect can be secured by way of an
appropriately worded planning condition (including the identification of trees’ root
protection areas and tree protection systems).

5.6

A ‘no dig’ construction technique would be utilised for the creation of the access and parking
area and any part of the driveway which falls within the root protection areas of any trees.

5.7

A lack of housing delivery has been identified in demand areas such as the West Linton area.
The proposal seeks to go toward meeting the housing land supply requirement sought by
SESPlan and the LDP.

5.8

The proposal is therefore considered to be a sustainable form of development that accords
with both the aims and objectives of local planning policy and we respectfully request that
this appeal is allowed.

Page 82

Page 83

Page 84

Page 85

Page 86

Page 87

Page 88

Page 89

Page 90

Page 91

Page 92

Page 93

Page 94

Page 95

Page 96

Page 97

Page 98

Page 99

Page 100

Page 101

Page 102

Page 103

Page 104

Page 105

Page 106

Page 107

Page 108

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha

Planning Design & Access Statement
October 2018

Prepared by

Page 109

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.

Appraisal
The Application
The application is for Planning Permission in Principle for 2 house building
plots in land to the south-west of 1 Cowdenburn Cottages, Lamancha.
The Location

The application site is located alongside the A701 public road and adjoins the
existing building group of five dwellings at Cowdenburn. Access is through an
existing field gate from the minor access road serving the existing adjacent
cottages.
The Application Site
The subject of this application is the ground adjoining/adjacent to the
applicant’s house. These grounds are presently used as a paddock and a
timber field shelter exists along the adjoining boundary with the applicants
property.

Page 110

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.

The application site is triangular in shape and is accessed through an existing
field access, through a timber gate within the existing timber post and rail
boundary fence with 1 Cowdenburn Cottages and partly forms the north-east
boundary of the application site.

This continues to the rear boundary of the applicants garden and is then
undefined as it crosses and area of ground owned by the applicant to the rear
of their garden.

Page 111

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.

This then changes to a post & wire fence which adjoins the extensive garden
ground of 5 Cowdenburn Cottages before reaching the former Dolphinton
railway branch line.

The former railway line forms the southern boundary of the application site
and is defined by a post and wire fence.

Page 112

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.

The north-western boundary lies alongside the A701 public road and is
defined by a post and wire fence along which there are a belt of mature trees
screening the application site from view.

Development Proposal
The development proposal is to create two building plots from the applicants
paddock ground adjacent to the existing building group.

Planning Policy
To determine the likely hood of success, a request for pre-application
planning advice was sought by the applicant from the Planning Authority (Ref.
18/00229/PREAPP) together with an indicative design for four plots (see
appendicies 1 & 2).
The response dated 20th July 2018 (see appendix 2) highlights the following
policies against which the proposals would be considered:
Scottish Borders Council Local Development Plan (2016)
Policy PMD1 – Sustainability.
Policy PMD2 – Quality Standards.
Policy PMD3 – Land Use Allocations.
Policy PMD4 – Development Outwith Development Boundaries.
Policy PMD5 – Infill Development.
Policy HD2 – Affordable and Special Needs Housing.
Policy HD3 – Protection of Residential Amenity.
Policy EP1 – International Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species.
Page 113Sites and Protected Species.
Policy EP2 – National Nature Conservation

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.
Policy EP3 – Local Biodiversity.
Policy EP8 – Archaeology.
Policy EP12 – Green Networks.
Policy IS2 – Developer Contributions.
Policy IS6 – Roads Adoption Standards.
Policy IS7 – Parking Provisions and Standards.
Policy IS9 – Waste Water Treatment Standards
Policy IS13 – Contaminated Land.
Scottish Borders Council Supplementary Planning Guidance
Affordable Housing (2015).
Biodiversity (2005).
Contaminated Land Inspection Strategy (2001).
Development Contributions (2018).
Green Space (2009).
Householder Development (incorporating Privacy and Sunlight guide) (2006).
Housing Supplementary Guidance (2017).
Landscape & Development (2008).
Local Biodiversity Action Plan: Biodiversity in the Scottish Borders (2001).
New Housing in the Borders Countryside (2008).
Placemaking and Design (2010).
Trees and Development (2008).
Use of Timber in Sustainable Construction (2009).
Waste Management (2015).
In this regard, the advice received can be summarised as follows:
Assessment
•

Policy Principle

“The Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016) sets out a number of
policy constraints by which new development proposals must be assessed.
The LDP is founded on the premise of supporting and encouraging
sustainable development in accordance with our Environmental Strategy. All
policies with the Plan must be read against Policy PMD1 – Sustainability.
In terms of principle of development, the application is required to be
assessed in terms of Policy HD2 of the Scottish Borders Local Development
Plan 2016 and the supplementary planning guidance on New Housing in the
Borders countryside. The Policy allows for new housing associated with
existing building groups, and in cases where economic justification is present.
The supporting documentation has been reviewed in order to establish the
relevant criteria of Policy HD2 that applies in order to allow proper
consideration of the proposals. Whilst criteria (f) allow for the consideration of
a new dwelling for business needs, no evidence or business case has been
provided within the supporting statement to indicate that the proposed
Pageto114
dwelling would be for people requiring
live on site and mainly engaged in

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.
agriculture or forestry work. Therefore, it is considered that review of the
proposals is limited to an assessment against criteria (a) Building Groups.
Under criteria (a) Building Groups, the initial consideration for new housing is
to establish the presence of a building group (comprising of at least three
dwellings), with a review of whether the proposed site would have an
appropriate relationship to the group, taking into account the requirements of
supplementary planning guidance New Housing in the Borders Countryside.
The policy states that any consent for new build granted under this part of
this policy should not exceed two dwellings or a 30% increase in addition to
the group during the Plan period.
The application site is a paddock (triangular in shape) containing the line of a
dismantled railway along the southern boundary. To the north-east lies a
small building group comprising five dwellings. The group has evolved in a
linear fashion and fronts the main public road A701, surrounded by
agricultural fields. The application site lies with the Northern Housing Market
Area and has no landscape designations.
In this instance there is a presence of a group of five dwellings located to the
north-east of the site. Numerically, a group of five has capacity to
accommodate a maximum of 2No. dwellings within the current plan period.
However, Policy HD2 and new supplementary guidance (New Housing in the
Scottish Borders) that all development relate well to the existing group.
The indicative layout illustrates 5No. Dwellings within individual plots
extending to the south-west of No. 1 Cowdenburn within the undeveloped
paddock site. The number of dwellings proposed would clearly exceed the
number allowable under Policy HD2.
Consideration has been given to the relationship that any new dwellings may
have to the adjacent building group. Whilst there is tree cover on the north
west roadside boundary the paddock is open on all other boundaries. The
open nature of the application site itself, and weak boundary (post/wire fence)
to the east and south of the site results in the area proposed for development
being viewed, and considered, as part of the wider field network.
It is not considered that the proposed development site would relate well to
the existing group and therefore would be contrary to Policy HD2 and related
supplementary guidance, New Housing in the Borders Countryside. The
proposal for 5No. new dwellings would break into an undeveloped field and
extend beyond the confines of the group along the public road.
It should be noted that there may be scope for a single dwelling house to be
erected adjacent to 1 Cowdenburn Cottages – this would require the removal
of the stable to facilitate a space that aligns/relates well to the existing group.
This dwelling would provide an end stop to the group akin to No.5 to the north
west end of the existing line of houses. Landscape planting on the south and
south west boundary of a single plot would enclose the dwelling within the
Page 115
group.”

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.
•

Major/Local Development

“A proposal for a single dwelling would be considered a “Local” development
under the hierarchy of development.”
•

Placemaking and Design

“Accounting for the adopted policies and guidance of the Council in
Placemaking and Design, I can advise that Policy PMD2 is relevant. The aim
of the policy is to ensure that all new development is of a high quality and
respect the environment in which it is contained. The aim is to ensure that the
development does not negatively impact on existing buildings, or surrounding
landscape and visual amenity of the area. The development should be of a
scale, massing height and density appropriate to it's surroundings and
finished externally in materials which compliment the locality. It should be
satisfactorily accommodated within the site and should incorporate hard and
soft landscaping works including structural or screen planting where
necessary to help integration with it's surroundings and the wider
environment”.
•

Amenity and Privacy

“The Council has adopted supplementary guidance and planning policies
which seek to protect residential amenity. Neighbouring amenity is afforded
protection by Policy HD3 of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan
(2016). This is enhanced upon by privacy and amenity standards set out in
the adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance on Householder
Development. In the case of a single dwelling the site should be of a sufficient
size that amenity standards could be achieved through sensitive siting and
design considerations. The plot should be of a similar size and length to the
neighbouring property No. 1 Cowdenburn.
•

Road Safety

“Policy PMD2 and supplementary planning guidance New Housing in the
Borders Countryside require that developments have a suitable means of
access. Any new access on to the public road has to meet a certain standard
to ensure it is safe, for for purpose and does not represent a road safety
issue. The Roads Planning Engineer has assessed the proposal taking into
account the geometry of the road and visibility splays. The following points
would have to be included in any design which is to be submitted for
consideration;
The standard visibility from this access would require to be 2.4 x 215 metres
in both directions onto the public road. It is noted that the visibility to the south
west falls below this requirement; therefore to be able to support any
development your application would have to demonstrate that the required
visibility could be achieved.

Page 116
Construction specification for the private
access road.

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.
Parking and turning for two vehicles to be provided within the curtilage of a
housing plot. It should be noted that garages do not count towards parking
provision. Whilst a single visitor space would be required for a 5 house
development, a proposal for 1 dwelling house would not require a visitor
space.”
•

Environmental Health

“Under Policy IS9 of the Local Development Plan (Waste Water Treatment
Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage) development proposals should
include satisfactory arrangements for dealing with foul and surface water
drainage. SUDS (Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems) principles should be
incorporated in the development.”
•

Contaminated Land

“The land previously housed a railway cutting which was subsequently infilled
with material of unknown provenance. This land use is potentially
contaminative and it is the responsibility of the developer to demonstrate that
the land is suitable for the use they propose. Redevelopment of the land
would require a site investigation and risk assessment to outline a
remediation strategy and verification plan for any contaminants present prior
to development commencing.”
•

Heritage and Archaeology

“There is a low to moderate possibility for buried archaeology within the site.
Given the low to moderate potential some form of mitigation may be required.
An archaeological evaluation of the site would likely be required prior to any
development commencing.”
•

Development Contributions

“The Council has adopted supplementary planning guidance and planning
policy covering development contributions. In this case contributions
assessment is as follows:
Education - £1,092.00 per market house (Peebles)
Affordable Housing - £30,000 @25% for residential development 2-16 units.
Where a single house is proposed no affordable housing contribution would
be due.”
•

Trees

“A single mature Sycamore of significant stature stands close to the proposed
access for the site. The tree is a valuable feature of the landscape and if
protected will enhance the amenity of the proposed development. The current
tree cover should be retained and protected and further planting incorporated
Page 117

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.
to contain the site from the south and assimilate the development into it's
setting.
The following points would have to be included into any design which is to be
submitted for consideration;
A detailed landscape proposal should accompany any proposal.
Tree survey of significant trees and hedges on the site in accordance with BS
5837 – 2012 including root protection areas and the proposals to be overlaid
on the drawings.
•

Protected Species

“ Protected species may use the site and ecological surveys may be required.
Should the stable block be demolished establishment of the presence of bats
and breeding birds.”
Summary
“The number of dwellings proposed (5) would clearly exceed the number
allowable under Policy HD2 during the current Local Period. The 5No. new
dwellings would break into an undeveloped field and extend beyond the
confines of the group. On this basis an application for 5No. dwellings would
not be supported.
Taking into account the context and existing sense of place at this location it
is considered that there may be potential for one additional dwelling of a
suitable mass and scale on the position of the stable/garage buildings
adjacent to No. 1 Cowdenburn Cottages. Consideration should be given to
the removal of these outbuildings and provision of a plot size of a similar
size/length to the existing dwelling. Additional landscaping to the south west
and south east of the new plot would be required in order to assimilate the
development and enclose the group. Suitable visibility splays for the access
would require to be provided.
Should you progress to an application the key considerations would include
road safety, design and layout, and the potential impact on visual and
residential amenities, as well as cultural and natural heritage.”

Supporting Planning Policies
Notable Planning Policies in support of the proposals can be summarised as
follows:

Page 118

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.
Scottish Borders Council Local Development Plan (2016)
Policy PMD2: Quality Standards states:
“All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with
the sustainability principles, design to fit with the Scottish Borders townscapes
and to integrate with it's landscape surroundings. The standards that apply to
development are:PLACE MAKING AND DESIGN
c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of the
overall provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their aftercare and maintenance.
f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including
structural or screen planting where necessary, to help integration with it's
surroundings and the wider environment and to meet open space
requirements.
h) it creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear
understanding of the context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders
architectural styles; this need not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or
innovative design.
k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form.
l) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site.
m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to
the development that will help integration with it's surroundings.
Policy PMD5: Infill Development states:
“Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall sites, including the re-use of
buildings within Development Boundaries as shown on proposals maps will
be approved where the following criteria are satisfied:
a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the
area; and
b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area;
f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to
adjoining properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking.”

Page 119

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.
Policy HD2: Housing in the Countryside states:
“The Council wishes to promote appropriate rural housing development:
b) associated with existing building groups where this does not adversely
affect their character of that of the surrounding area.
Its also states:
“Housing of up to a total of 2 additional dwellings or a 30% increase of the
building group, whichever is greater, associated with the existing building
group may be approved provided that;
a) the Council is satisfied that the site is well related to an existing group of at
least three houses or building(s) currently in residential use or capable of
conversion to residential use.
b) the cumulative impact of new development on the character of the building
group , and on the landscape and amenity of the surrounding area will be
taken into account when determining new applications.
c) any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not
exceed two housing dwellings or 30% increase in the group during the Plan
period. No further development above this threshold will be permitted.
In addition, where a proposal for new development is to be supported, the
development should be appropriate in scale, siting, design, access and
materials, and should be sympathetic to the character of the group.
Policy HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity states:
“Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of
existing or proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the
amenity and character of these areas, any developments will be assessed
against;
a) the principle of development, including where relevant, any open space
that would be lost; and
b) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of;
- the scale, form and type of development in terms of it's fit within a residential
area.
- the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding
properties particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sun lighting
provisions. These considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground
or “backland” development.
- the generation of traffic or noise.
- the level of visual impact.

Page 120

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.
Policy EP3: Local Biodiversity states:
“Any development that could impact on local biodiversity through impacts on
habitats and species should:
b) be sited and minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity of the site,
including it's environmental quality, ecological status and viability.
Policy IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban
Drainage states:
“d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent
to publicly sewered areas, the use of private sewerage may be acceptable,
providing it can be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any
negative impacts to public health, the environment or the quality of
watercourses or groundwater.”
Policy IS13: Contaminated Land states:
“Where development is proposed on land that is contaminated, suspected of
contamination, or unstable the developer will be required to;
a) carry out in fill consultation with, and to the satisfaction of Scottish Borders
Council, appropriate phased site investigations and risk assessments, and
b) where necessary, and to the satisfaction of Scottish Borders Council
design, implement, and validate appropriate remedial or mitigation measures
to render the site suitable for it's proposed use.”

Planning Considerations
Whilst supporting the principle of development at this location, the Planning
Authority raised concerns in their pre-application planning advice that require
the applicant to demonstrate that following matters have been suitably
addressed:
•
•
•
•
•

A reduction in the scale of development proposed.
Siting and design of proposed dwellings.
Landscape and visual impact.
Vehicular access/visibility/parking.
Ecological Impacts and Habitats.

We have taken note of the concerns raised in the pre-application planning
response and we have found that there is a varied history of planning
applications for single and multiple dwellings in the local area. The sites
deemed unsuitable have been refused due to inappropriate siting or a failure
to successfully integrate the proposed development into the landscape. In this
submission we wish to acknowledge the Council's previous concerns and
through comprehensive assessment
of the
Page
121land form and natural

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.
features, set out how we propose to address these concerns and present
proposals that are well founded and comply with the relevant Local Plan
policies.

Reduction in the Scale of Development
A review of the Policy HD2 Housing in the Countryside of the Scottish Borders
Council Local Plan (2016) and has brought about a reduction in the scale of
the development from four down to two plots.
This complies with policy guidelines which restricts the expansion of existing
group to two dwelling or a 30% increase of the building group, whichever is
greater within the Plan period.
With closer assessment of the land form, the new proposals seek to address
concerns expressed over the relationship that the site would have to the
existing building group and the wider landscape if it were to be developed.

Siting and Design of the Proposed Dwellings
We have taken the view that since this application is for Planning Permission
in Principle, siting and design of the proposed dwellings would be deferred to
a separate reserved matters application.
However, we have observed that the other buildings belonging to the group
are single storey and this would seem to be the preferred design approach.

In this regard we have prepared an indicative layout (see Appendix 2) which
would see the “infill” plot aligned with the existing adjacent roadside cottages
and the end plot forming the “bookend” to the building group.

Page 122

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.

Landscape and Visual Impact
For any expansion of an existing building group to be deemed appropriate,
comparison must be made between the form of the existing group and how
any such expansion will integrate with this and appear as a natural addition.
Figure 1 shows outlines the existing group which takes on a form that is
irregular in shape and relates only to the passing A701 public road and the
boundary to the east. Boundaries to the south and south-west are untidy and
based on the garden ground associated with each property. They do not
relate particularly well to any natural landscape feature.

Figure 1 – Building group as existing

Figure 2 illustrates the proposed expansion to the building group and shows
how by extending both of the linear boundaries along the roadside and east to
their natural conclusion along with the natural boundary along the south
created by the line of the former railway results in a more natural form to the
building group creating a natural “bookend” to compliment the recent addition
at the north end of the group.

Page 123

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.

Figure 2 – Proposed Expansion of the Building Group
It is recognised that there are small areas of ground to the east that are
outwith the boundary of the application site. However, these are in the
ownership of the applicant and it would be deemed appropriate that the these
become a natural addition to the garden ground of No.1 Cowdenburn
Cottages.
Figures 3 & 4 illustrate the application site boundary and similarities between
the triangular shaped boundaries that will form the ends of the expanded
building group.

Page 124
Figure 3 – Comparison of the ends of the building group

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.

Figure 4 – Comparison of the ends of the building group
Although identified as being outwith the building group, there are two existing
dwellings to the west of the application site, on the opposite side of the A701
that are are worthy of note and how they relate to the land form. Figure 4
illustrates the strong lines in the landscape created by the former railway line
and how built structures can be historically associated with this. Although not
relevant in terms of policy guidance, the relationship of the proposed
development with the railway line echoes the form of development on the
opposite side of the road helping to further integrate the development into the
landscape.

Page
125 along the former railway line
Figure 4 – Comparison of the nearby
dwellings

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.

The newly created boundary along the A701 is screened from the road with a
row of mature trees and shrubs.
This is a valuable asset to the site which provides effective screening of the
development from the roadside whilst also enhancing the amenity from within
the development site and reducing road noise to the dwellings. Subject to a
BS5837 complaint survey, we propose that these trees remain with only minor
raising of the canopy implemented to improve visibility to the south-west from
the existing road junction up to the standard required.

A new green boundary to the south of the application site would be created
within the existing post and wire fence. This would take the form of a native
mixed hedge with species specially chosen to provide an attractive year round
boundary and to create a natural habitat for birds and insect life. Further
structured planting of native broad leaved trees to compliment existing trees
Page 126

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.
further along the southern boundary would also be proposed to integrate the
application site into the landscape.
We would request that a fully detailed assessment of the existing tree and
scheme of landscaping be formally considered as a reserved matter.

Vehicular Access, Visibility & Parking
Vehicular access from the public road is via two junctions to either end of the
building group. Visibility to the north is good and within the recommended
guidelines.

Visibility to north
Visibility to the south is presently sub-standard but can be improved to the
required standard by selective trimming and raising of the canopies along the
line of trees within the application site. Figure 5 illustrates the required
alignment of the visibility splay to the south. It is worth noting that the entire
visibility splay required to the south is within land which is under the control of
the applicant.

Page 127

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.

Figure 5 – Visibility splay from the southern junction

Visibility to South

Page 128

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.
Vehicular access to the application site is taken through a field access via the
existing access road serving the adjacent cottages. This road is the old public
road and is sufficiently wide enough to let two cars pass each other.

Due to the reduction in the scale of development, the proposed plots could be
accessed from a private road and visitor parking would no longer become a
requirement. This would also help to reduce the impact of the proposed
development and retain the rural character of the building group.

Ecological Impacts and Habitats
It is understood that a preliminary ecological assessment would be required to
assess the impact of the proposed development on the local ecology. We
would request that this assessment be formally considered as a reserved
matter.

Waste Water Treatment & SUDS
It is understood that a private drainage system shall be installed to serve the
new dwellings. Sufficient land is available to site the appropriate plant
together with the additional land required to discharge the treated effluent to
ground via a soakaway system. We would request that this, together with a
suitable SUDS rainwater harvesting/disposal solution be formally assessed as
a reserved matter.

Contaminated Land
The land form of the application site is predominantly flat and no further earth
works would be required to develop the site. However, it is understood that a
formal site investigation will have to take place along with a report detailing

Page 129

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.
any if any remediation works are necessary and carried out to the satisfaction
of the Scottish Borders Council. We would request that this assessment be
formally considered as a reserved matter.

Summary
In summary we believe the proposals outlined in this application are well
considered and uphold the principles defined in the relevant Planning
Developments Policies and Guidelines of the Scottish Borders Council. We
also trust that the amended proposals have demonstrated that we have
responded to and addressed the issues highlighted from the initial request for
pre-application planning advice.

RM architecture Ltd
5th October 2018

Page 130

Proposed House Plots
Adjacent to
1 Cowdenburn Cottages,
Lamancha.

List of Appendices
Appendix 1 – Applicants pre-application request for planning advice.
Appendix 2 – Pre-application Planning Advice ref:18/00229/PREAPP.
Appendix 3 – Indicative Site Layout ref: 18-020/PPP/001.

Page 131

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 133

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 135

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 137

Agenda Item 5b

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 139

This page is intentionally left blank

List of Policies

Agenda Item 5c

Local Review Reference: 19/00010/RREF
Planning Application Reference: 18/01469/PPP
Development Proposal: Erection of two dwellinghouses
Location: Paddock south of and incorporating part garden ground of 1 Cowdenburn
Cottages, West Linton
Applicant: Mr A Anderson
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016
POLICY PMD1: SUSTAINABILITY
In determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, the Council will have
regard to the following sustainability principles which underpin all the Plan’s policies and
which developers will be expected to incorporate into their developments:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)
l)

the long term sustainable use and management of land
the preservation of air and water quality
the protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, and species
the protection of built and cultural resources
the efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources
the minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its
sustainable management
the encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the
private car
the minimisation of light pollution
the protection of public health and safety
the support to community services and facilities
the provision of new jobs and support to the local economy
the involvement of the local community in the design, management and improvement
of their environment

POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS
All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its
landscape surroundings. The standards which will apply to all development are that:
Sustainability
a)
In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has
demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient
use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources
such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance. Planning
applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction
target has been met, with at least half of this target met through the use of low or
zero carbon technology,
b)
it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,
c)
it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall
provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and
maintenance,
d)
it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,
e)
it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and,
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

1
Page 141

List of Policies
f)

g)

it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the
wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an
early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for
long term landscape/open space maintenance,
it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design
h)
It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the
context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need
not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,
i)
it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and,
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,
j)
it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the
existing building,
k)
it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,
l)
it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
m)
it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the
development that will help integration with its surroundings,
n)
it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.
Accessibility
o)
Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street
patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,
p)
it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
q)
it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the
site access,
r)
it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport
connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support
more sustainable travel patterns,
s)
it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used
for waste collection purposes.
Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity
t)
It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be
appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,
u)
it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.
Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and
landscape plans as appropriate.
POLICY PMD5: INFILL DEVELOPMENT

2
Page 142

List of Policies
Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings within
Development Boundaries as shown on proposal maps will be approved where the following
criteria are satisfied:
a)
where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and
b)
it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and
c)
the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the
social and economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or ‘town and
village cramming’; and
d)
it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its
surroundings; and
e)
adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water
and drainage and schools capacity; and
f)
it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining
properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking.
All applications will be considered against the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance
on Placemaking and Design. Developers are required to provide design statements as
appropriate.
POLICY HD2: HOUSING IN THE COUNTRYSIDE
The Council wishes to promote appropriate rural housing development:
a)
in village locations in preference to the open countryside where permission will only
be granted in special circumstances on appropriate sites,
b)
associated with existing building groups where this does not adversely affect their
character or that of the surrounding area, and
c)
in dispersed communities in the Southern Borders housing market area.
These general principles in addition to the requirement for suitable roads access will be the
starting point for the consideration of applications for housing in the countryside, which will
be supplemented by Supplementary Planning Guidance / Supplementary Guidance on New
Housing in the Borders Countryside and on Placemaking and Design.
(A) BUILDING GROUPS
Housing of up to a total of 2 additional dwellings or a 30% increase of the building group,
whichever is the greater, associated with existing building groups may be approved provided
that:
a)
the Council is satisfied that the site is well related to an existing group of at least
three houses or building(s) currently in residential use or capable of conversion to residential
use. Where conversion is required to establish a cohesive group of at least three houses, no
additional housing will be approved until such conversion has been implemented,
b)
the cumulative impact of new development on the character of the building group,
and on the landscape and amenity of the surrounding area will be taken into account when
determining new applications. Additional development within a building group will be refused
if, in conjunction with other developments in the area, it will cause unacceptable adverse
impacts,
c)
any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not exceed
two housing dwellings or a 30% increase in addition to the group during the Plan period. No
further development above this threshold will be permitted.
In addition, where a proposal for new development is to be supported, the proposal should
be appropriate in scale, siting, design, access, and materials, and should be sympathetic to
the character of the group.

3
Page 143

List of Policies
The calculations on building group size are based on the existing number of housing units
within the group as at the start of the Local Development Plan period. This will include those
units under construction or nearing completion at that point.
(B) DISPERSED BUILDINGS GROUPS
In the Southern Housing Market area there are few building groups comprising 3 houses
or more, and a more dispersed pattern is the norm. In this area a lower threshold may
be appropriate, particularly where this would result in tangible community, economic or
environmental benefits. In these cases the existence of a sense of place will be the primary
consideration.
Housing of up to 2 additional dwellings associated with dispersed building groups that meet
the above criteria may be approved provided that:
a)
the Council is satisfied that the site lies within a recognised dispersed community in
the Southern Borders housing market area,
b)
any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not exceed
two housing dwellings in addition to the group during the Plan period. No further
development above this threshold will be permitted,
c)
the design of housing will be subject to the same considerations as other types of
housing in the countryside proposals.
(C) CONVERSIONS OF BUILDINGS TO A HOUSE
Development that is a change of use of a building to a house may be acceptable provided
that:
a)
the Council is satisfied that the building has architectural or historic merit, is capable
of conversion and is physically suited for residential use,
b)
the building stands substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height) and the
existing structure requires no significant demolition. A structural survey will be required
where in the opinion of the Council it appears that the building may not be capable of
conversion, and
c)
the conversion and any proposed extension or alteration is in keeping with the scale
and architectural character of the existing building.
(D) RESTORATION OF HOUSES
The restoration of a house may also be acceptable provided that the walls of the former
residential property stand substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height). In
addition:
a)
the siting and design reflects and respects the historical building pattern and the
character of the landscape setting,
b)
any proposed extension or alteration should be in keeping with the scale, form and
architectural character of the existing or original building, and
c)
significant alterations to the original character will only be considered where it can be
demonstrated that these provide environmental benefits such as a positive contribution to
the landscape and/or a more sustainable and energy efficient design.
(E) REPLACEMENT DWELLINGS
The proposed replacement of an existing house may be acceptable provided that:

4
Page 144

List of Policies
a)
the siting and design of the new building reflects and respects the historical building
pattern and the character of the landscape setting,
b)
the proposal is in keeping with the existing/original building in terms of its scale,
extent, form and architectural character,
c)
significant alterations to the original character of the house will only be considered
where it can be demonstrated that these provide environmental benefits such as a positive
contribution to the landscape and /or a more sustainable and energy efficient design.
(F) ECONOMIC REQUIREMENT
Housing with a location essential for business needs may be acceptable if the Council is
satisfied that:
a)
the housing development is a direct operational requirement of an agricultural,
horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and it
is for a worker predominantly employed in the enterprise and the presence of that worker onsite is essential to the efficient operation of the enterprise. Such development could include
businesses that would cause disturbance or loss of amenity if located within an existing
settlement, or
b)
it is for use of a person last employed in an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other
enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and also employed on the unit that is
the subject of the application, and the development will release another house for continued
use by an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to
the countryside, and
c)
the housing development would help support a business that results in a clear social
or environmental benefit to the area, including the retention or provision of employment or
the provision of affordable or local needs housing, and
d)
no appropriate site exists within a building group, and
e)
there is no suitable existing house or other building capable of conversion for the
required residential use.
In ALL instances in considering proposals relative to each of the policy sections above, there
shall be compliance with the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance where it meets the
terms of this policy and development must not negatively impact on landscape and existing
communities. The cumulative effect of applications under this policy will be taken into
account when determining impact.
POLICY HD3 : PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY
Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:
a)
b)
(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that
would be lost; and
the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,
the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties
particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’
development,
the generation of traffic or noise,
the level of visual impact.

5
Page 145

List of Policies
POLICY HD4: MEETING THE HOUSING LAND REQUIREMENT/FURTHER HOUSING
LAND SAFEGUARDING
The areas indicated in the settlement profiles for longer term expansion and protection shall
be safeguarded accordingly. Proposals for housing development in such expansion areas
coming forward in advance of the identification of a shortfall in the effective housing land
supply will be treated as premature.
As the plan does not adequately address the housing land requirement set out in SESplan
and its Supplementary Guidance on Housing Land, the council will prepare and adopt
supplementary guidance in order to identify additional sites to provide for a further 916 units
during the plan period.
POLICY EP3: LOCAL BIODIVERSITY
Development that would have an unacceptable adverse effect on Borders Notable Species
and Habitats of Conservation Concern will be refused unless it can be demonstrated that the
public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the value of the habitat for biodiversity
conservation.
Any development that could impact on local biodiversity through impacts on habitats and
species should:
a)
aim to avoid fragmentation or isolation of habitats; and
b)
be sited and designed to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity of the site,
including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and
c)
compensate to ensure no net loss of biodiversity through use of biodiversity offsets
as appropriate; and
d)
aim to enhance the biodiversity value of the site, through use of an ecosystems
approach, with the aim of creation or restoration of habitats and wildlife corridors and
provision for their long-term management and maintenance.
POLICY EP8: ARCHAEOLOGY
(A) National Archaeological Sites
Development proposals which would destroy or adversely affect the appearance, fabric or
setting of Scheduled Monuments or other nationally important sites will not be permitted
unless:
the development offers substantial benefits, including those of a social or economic nature,
that clearly outweigh the national value of the site, and
there are no reasonable alternative means of meeting the development need.
(B) Battlefields
The Council may support development proposals within a battlefield on the Inventory of
Historic Battlefields Register, or a regionally significant site, that seek to protect, conserve,
and/or enhance the landscape characteristics or important features of the battlefield.
Proposals will be assessed according to their sensitivity to the battlefield.
(C) Regional or Local Archaeological Assets
Development proposals which will adversely affect an archaeological asset of regional or
local significance will only be permitted if it can be demonstrated that the benefits of the
proposal will clearly outweigh the heritage value of the asset.

6
Page 146

List of Policies
In all of the above cases, where development proposals impact on a Scheduled Monument,
other nationally important sites, or any other archaeological or historical asset, developers
may be required to carry out detailed investigations.
Any proposal that will adversely affect a historic environment asset or its appropriate setting
must include a mitigation strategy acceptable to the Council.
POLICY EP13: TREES, WOODLANDS AND HEDGEROWS
The Council will refuse development that would cause the loss of or serious damage to the
woodland resource unless the public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the loss of
landscape, ecological, recreational, historical, or shelter value.
Any development that may impact on the woodland resource should:
a)
aim to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity value of the woodland resource,
including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and
b)
where there is an unavoidable loss of the woodland resource, ensure appropriate
replacement planting, where possible, within the area of the Scottish Borders; and
c)
adhere to any planning agreement sought to enhance the woodland resource.
POLICY IS2: DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS
Where a site is otherwise acceptable in terms of planning policy, but cannot proceed due to
deficiencies in infrastructure and services or to environmental impacts, any or all of which
will be created or exacerbated as a result of the development, the Council will require
developers to make a full or partial contribution towards the cost of addressing such
deficiencies.
Contributions may be required for one or more of the following:
a)
b)
c)

d)
e)
f)

g)

treatment of surface or foul waste water in accordance with the Plan’s policies on
preferred methods (including SUDS maintenance);
provision of schools, school extensions or associated facilities, all in accordance with
current educational capacity estimates and schedule of contributions;
off-site transport infrastructure including new roads or road improvements, Safer
Routes to School, road safety measures, public car parking, cycle-ways, bridges and
associated studies and other access routes, subsidy to public transport operators; all
in accordance with the relevant standards and the provisions of any Travel Plan;
leisure, sport, recreation, play areas and community facilities, either on-site or offsite;
landscape, open space, allotment provision, trees and woodlands, including costs of
future management and maintenance;
protection, enhancement and promotion of environmental assets either on-site or offsite, having regard to the Local Biodiversity Action Plan and the Council’s
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Biodiversity, including compensation for any
losses and/or alternative provision;
provision of other facilities and equipment for the satisfactory completion of the
development that may include: measures to minimise the risk of crime; provision for
the storage, collection and recycling of waste, including communal facilities; provision
of street furniture and digital connectivity with associated infrastructure.

Wherever possible, any requirement to provide developer contributions will be secured by
planning condition. Where a legal agreement is necessary, the preference for using an
agreement under other legislation, for example the 1973 Local Government (Scotland) Act

7
Page 147

List of Policies
and the 1984 Roads (Scotland) Act will be considered. A planning obligation will only be
necessary where successors in title need to be bound by its terms. Where appropriate, the
council will consider the economic viability of a proposed development, including possible
payment options, such as staged or phased payments.
POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISION AND STANDARDS
Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with
approved standards.
Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not
compromise road safety.
In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to
promote the use of sustainable travel modes.
POLICY IS9: WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS AND SUSTAINABLE URBAN
DRAINAGE
WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new
development will be, in order of priority:
a)
direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or
failing that:
b)
negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or failing
that:
c)
agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or
temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment
plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that:
d)
for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing it can
be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the
environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater.
In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the
conditions in criteria (d) above can be satisfied.
Development will be refused if:
a)
it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment
infrastructure within settlements,
b)
it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to
provide for new infrastructure.
SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE
Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites,
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the
satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required),
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required. Development will be
refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids
flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage

8
Page 148

List of Policies
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood
attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features.
POLICY IS13 CONTAMINATED LAND
Where development is proposed on land that is contaminated, suspected of contamination,
or unstable the developer will be required to:
a)
carry out, in full consultation with, and to the satisfaction of Scottish Borders Council,
appropriate phased site investigations and risk assessments; and
b)
where necessary, and to the satisfaction of Scottish Borders Council design,
implement, and validate appropriate remedial or mitigation measures to render the site
suitable for its proposed use.
OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS








Scottish Planning Policy 2014
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on New Housing in the Borders Countryside
2008
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking & Design 2010
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Privacy and Sunlight 2006
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Trees and Development 2008
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Landscape and Development 2008
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Development Contributions 2011

9
Page 149

This page is intentionally left blank

